
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
WEDNESDAY,  SEPTEMBER 9, 2020 

           Closed Session – 6:00 PM 
Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

MISSION STATEMENT  
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 
 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

Erin Minett, Mayor 
    Douglass Fleming, Council Member              Duane Strawser, Vice Mayor 

Daniela Fernández, Council Member   Vacant, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 
each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 
local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 
advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  
Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 
City, CA during normal business hours. 
In order to minimize the spread of the COVID 19 virus Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend requirements of the Brown Act.   Please be advised 
that the Council Chambers are closed to the public and that some, or all, of the City of Nevada 
City, City Council Members may attend this meeting telephonically. 
 
1. You are strongly encouraged to observe the City Council meetings live on PUBLIC 
TELEVISION CHANNEL 17,  ONLINE AT THE CITY’S WEBSITE 
WWW.NEVADACITYCA.GOV or Nevada City Public Meetings-YouTube Channel or at  
HTTP://NEVCO.GRANICUS.COM/PLAYER/CAMERA/2?PUBLISH_ID=7 (If you are unable 
to view the meeting live on YouTube please use one of the other 3 methods). 
 
2. If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item, please submit your comment 
via email to NEVADACITY.OLSON@GMAIL.COM.  Comments will be accepted at the email 
provided through the live meeting.  You can also go to the Nevada City website at 
www.nevadacityca.gov and go to the public comment button to submit comments.  PLEASE 
INCLUDE YOUR NAME AND ADDRESS IN YOUR COMMENT, AS WELL AS, 
INCLUDING THE AGENDA ITEM LETTER AND NUMBER IN YOUR SUBJECT LINE.  
Please keep your written comments to 3 minutes or less.  Every effort will be made to read 
your comment into the record, but some comments may not be read due to time constraints. 
 
3. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-
2496 x133.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  [28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA 
Title II].   
 
The City of Nevada City thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent spreading 
the COVID 19 virus.  
 

 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCXSQwrXtey12YIl3IbyGMYQ
http://nevco.granicus.com/player/camera/2?publish_id=7
mailto:NEVADACITY.OLSON@GMAIL.COM
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 
AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 
questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 
to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 
opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. 
IF YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those 
issues you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.  
CLOSED SESSION:  6:00 PM 
 
Under Government Code Section 54950 members of the public are entitled to comment on the closed session 
agenda before the Council goes into closed session. 
   

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) City Attorney, Crystal Hodgson, 
and Police Chief, Chad Ellis are requesting a closed session to discuss the potential for 
litigation being initiated by the City in two matters. 

  
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Mayor Minett, Vice Mayor Strawser, Council Members Fleming and Fernández  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
PROCLAMATIONS:   
 
PRESENTATIONS:  Dr. Johnson, Nevada County Public Health Officer and Jill Blake, 
Director, Nevada County Public Health Department  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 
the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 
jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  
Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 
certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

3. CONSENT ITEMS: 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City 
Council and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, 
members of the Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed 
from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and action. 

 
A. Subject: Accounts Payable Activity Report – June, July and August 2020 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 
 



B. Subject: Action Minutes August 21, 2020 Special City Council Meeting   
Recommendation: Review and approve special City Council meeting action 
minutes of August 21, 2020.  
  

C. Subject: Action Minutes August 26, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting  
Recommendation: Review and approve regular City Council meeting action 
minutes of August 26, 2020. 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 
A. Subject: Update on State Law Evictions Protections (AB 3088) 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS: 
 
A. Subject: Letter Addressing PG&E Tree Removal 

Recommendation:  
1. Finalize list of trees to be reviewed by an arborist; and 

 
2. Review the draft letter, approve content and authorize the Mayor to sign; and 

 
3. Direct staff to sign the PG&E encroachment permit request, dated  8/24/20 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject: Presentation by Nevada County Transportation Commission’s Consultant 

Fehr and Peers Regarding Senate Bill 743 Vehicle Miles Traveled Study 
Recommendations  
Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

B. Subject: Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding 
Section 17.80.240 to the Nevada City Municipal Code Regulating Stationary 
Standby Generators and Ordinance 2020-XX an Ordinance of the City of Nevada 
City Amending Section 8.20.90 of the Nevada City Municipal Code in Order to 
Update the City’s Ordinance Pertaining to Emergency Use of Generators 
Recommendation:  

1. Adopt Resolution 2020-XX, Approving a Notice of Exemption Related to 
Adoption of Ordinance 2020-XX and Ordinance 2020-XX Updating the 
City’s Municipal Code Pertaining to Emergency Generator Use. 

 
2. Waive Reading of Ordinance, Read Title Only and Introduce for First 

Reading: Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City 
Amending Section 8.20.90 of the Nevada City Municipal Code to Add an 
Exception to the City’s Noise Regulations for the Use of Emergency 
Generators. 

 
 



3. Waive Reading of Ordinance, Read Title Only and Introduce for First 
Reading: Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City 
Adding Section 17.80.240 to the Nevada City Municipal Code Regulating 
Stationary Standby Generators. 

 
8. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 
9. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
10.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 
11.  ADJOURNMENT 

   
Certification of Posting of Agenda 
I, Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager for the City of Nevada City, declares that the foregoing 
agenda for the September 9th, 2020 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted September 
3rd, 2020 at the entrance of City Hall. The agenda is also posted on the City’s website 
www.nevadacityca.gov.   
 
Signed September 3rd, 2020, at Nevada City, California 
      
___________________________________________________ 
Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
City Council 

Long Range Calendar 
 
September 7, 2020 Holiday 
September 9, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
September 23, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
October 12, 2020 Holiday 
October 14, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
October 28, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
November 18, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
December 9, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
 
 
NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a 
meeting. 
 
NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 
remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 
impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 
while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
September 9, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Accounts Payable Activity Report – June, July and August 2020 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  
 
CONTACT:  Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The attached Accounts Payable Activity Report includes all the cash disbursements associated 
with the citywide expenditures for the month of June, July and August 2020. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   Not applicable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Varies Monthly.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Accounts Payable Activity Report – June, July and August 2020 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/








































REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
             Nevada City CA 95959 
September 9, 2020        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Action Minutes August 21, 2020 Special City Council Meeting   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve special City Council meeting action minutes of 
August 21, 2020.  
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The action minutes for the August 21, 2020 are attached for review. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   Not applicable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Special City Council Meeting action minutes August 21, 2020 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ACTION MINUTES 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF AUGUST 21, 2020  
 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links and 
Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the meeting date and 
Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Loree’ McCay, Deputy City Clerk at 
(530) 265-2496, ext 134. 
  
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
-  Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – None  
SPECIAL MEETING – 5:00 PM - Call to Order  
Roll Call:    Present: Present:  Mayor Minett, Vice Mayor Strawser, Council Members Fleming and 

Fernández 
Vacant:  Council Member  

1. PUBLIC COMMENT: As long as this is a special meeting, under Government Code section 
54954.3(a) members of the public are entitled to address the City Council only on items on the 
agenda for this special meeting before or during consideration of that item and NOT ON MATTERS 
NOT ON THE AGENDA for this special meeting.  

2. PRESENTATION:  Report on the Protest of August 9, 2020 in the City of Nevada City by 
Selected Attendees. 

Action: Multiple attendees of the protest made Presentations on August 9, 2020.  No action taken.  
3. SUBJECT:  Update on the Investigation Related to the Protest that Occurred on August 9, 2020 

RECOMMENDATION: Received and file.  
Action: Chief Ellis made a report to Council on the investigation related to the protest that occurred on 
August 9, 2020.  No action taken, receive and file.  

4. SUBJECT:  Development of a Protest and Demonstration Notification Process/Policy for 
Nevada City and the Nevada City Police Department  
RECOMMENDATION: Provide staff direction to develop a notification of protest and/or 
demonstration process policy and form to be provided to the City of Nevada City and Police 
Department prior to an event allowing the City to be appropriately prepared with necessary 
resources. 

Action: Council directed staff to develop a notification of protest and/or demonstration process policy 
and form. 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT:  7:37 pm               
AYES:   MINETT, STRAWSER, FLEMING AND FERNÁNDEZ   
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:      
ATTEST: 
       _____________________________ 
       Erin Minett, Mayor 
____________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
             Nevada City CA 95959 
September 9, 2020        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Action Minutes August 26, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve regular City Council meeting action minutes of 
August 26, 2020.  
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The action minutes for the August 26, 2020 are attached for review. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   Not applicable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Regular City Council Meeting action minutes August 26, 2020 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2020 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links 
and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the 
meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Loree’ 
McCay, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 134. 
  
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
-  Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 
 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) City Attorney, Crystal Hodgson, 
City Manager, Catrina Olson and Police Chief, Chad Ellis are requesting a closed 
session to discuss the potential for litigation being initiated by the City in a certain 
matter. 

Action: Staff to proceed as directed. 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:    Present:  Mayor Minett, Vice Mayor Strawser, Council Members Fleming and 

Fernández 
Vacant:  Council Member  

      
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

 
PROCLAMATIONS: Prostate Cancer Awareness Month – September 2020 
 
PRESENTATIONS:  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 
 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS AND FUTURE 

AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
A. Subject: Fire Activity Report – July 2020 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

B. Subject: Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2020-15, Relating to the 
General Plan Amendment and Pre-Zoning of the 35.2 Acres of Nevada County 
Territory to be Annexed into the City of Nevada City  
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2020-15, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada 
City relating to the General Plan Amendment and pre-zoning of the 35.2 acres of 
Nevada County territory to be annexed into the City of Nevada City. 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

C. Subject: Notice of Completion for Little Deer Creek Restoration Project Phase 2 in 
Nevada City 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-62, a Resolution for the City of Nevada 
City authorizing the Mayor to sign a Notice of Completion for Little Deer Creek 
Restoration Project Phase 2 in Nevada City and authorize the City Clerk to file said 
Notice of Completion with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office.   
 

D. Subject: Approval of the Subrecipient Agreement with Nevada County 
Transportation Commission for Transportation Planning  
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-63, a Resolution approving the 
Subrecipient Agreement with the Nevada County Transportation Commission for 
transportation planning and Authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 

E. Subject: Action Minutes August 12, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting   
Recommendation: Review and approve regular City Council meeting action 
minutes of August 12, 2020. 

Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Fleming to approve items 3A through 3E as 
presented.   
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 
 
4. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 

A. Subject: Memorandum of Understanding for Nevada County CARES Act Funding  
Recommendation: Provide staff direction as to the acceptance, authorizing the City 
Manager to sign, or denial of the memorandum of understanding (MOU) for Nevada 
County CARES Act funding. 

Action: Motion by Fleming, seconded by Strawser to authorize the City Manager to signed the 
MOU for Nevada County Cares Act funding with the addition of the effective dates of the 
agreement and actual amount the City will receive. 
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 
 

B. Subject: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Nevada City Ratifying the 
Civil Defense and Disaster Council’s August 20, 2020 Proclamation of the Existence 
of a Local Emergency by the Director of Defense and Disaster of the City of Nevada 
City Due to the Jones Fire 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-64, a Resolution of the City Council of the 
City of Nevada City ratifying the Civil Defense and Disaster Council’s August 20, 
2020 proclamation of the existence of a local emergency by the Director of Defense 
and Disaster of the City of Nevada City due to the Jones Fire. 

Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Fernández to pass Resolution 2020-64 a Resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Nevada City ratifying the Civil Defense and Disaster Council’s 
August 20, 2020 proclamation of the existence of a local emergency by the Director of Defense 
and Disaster of the City of Nevada City due to the Jones Fire.  
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 
 

C. Subject: Off Broadstreet Memorable Moments 
Recommendation: Review and authorize the Off Broadstreet Memorable Moments 
street closure request per application. 

Action: Motion by Fleming, seconded by Fernández to authorize the Off Broadstreet 
Memorable Moments street closure request per with application with the addition of submitting 
an encroachment permit. 
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 



3 

[Type here] 
 

 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
6. OLD BUSINESS:   
 
7. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Nevada County Transit Services Rebranding Project   
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

Action: Robin Valkenburgh, Nevada County Gold Country Stage Transit Services Manager 
provided a presentation about the Rebranding Project.  No action was taken, receive and file.  
 

B. Subject: Pedestrian Friendly Commercial Street Project  
Recommendation: Review Pedestrian Friendly Commercial Street Project and 
provide staff direction for developing a Final Phase II Commercial Street 
Improvement Plan. 

Action: Staff was directed to redraft the Final Phase II Commercial Street Improvement plan to 
include adjusting the street from the presented “meandering” street design to straight same 
width across and to widen sidewalks equally on both sides.  With design of pedestrian access, 
possible seating and tree/shrub locations to be taken back to planning commission for design 
review. 
 

C. Subject: Update on Tree Removal Proposal by PG&E – 263 Trees Along West 
Broad Street and Orchard Street 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
Action: Staff was directed to find and arborist to identify trees to be removed from the PG&E 
tree removal list and write an arborist report to present to PG&E, and for the City Manager to 
sign the agreement with the arborist not to exceed $5,000 limit.  Staff was further directed to 
work with PG&E to negotiate removing City identified trees from the list of tree removals 
provided to the City by PG&E. 
 
8. CORRESPONDENCE: 
  
9. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
 
10. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  A verbal report was provided. 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT:  - 10:40 PM 
                
AYES:   MINETT, STRAWSER, FLEMING, FERNÂNDEZ   
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:      
ATTEST:  
        _____________________________ 
        Erin Minett, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Update on State Law Evictions Protections (AB 3088)  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file. 
 
CONTACT:   Crystal Hodgson, City Attorney 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
On September 1, 2020, Governor Newsom signed AB 3088 into law which added eviction 
protections for tenants financially impacted by COVID-19.   
 
The following summary of the new law is from the August 31, 2020, press release on the 
Governor’s Website:   
 
“Under the legislation, no tenant can be evicted before February 1, 2021 as a result of 
rent owed due to a COVID-19 related hardship accrued between March 4 – August 31, 
2020, if the tenant provides a declaration of hardship according to the legislation’s 
timelines. For a COVID-19 related hardship that accrues between September 1, 2020 – 
January 31, 2021, tenants must also pay at least 25 percent of the rent due to avoid 
eviction. 
 
Tenants are still responsible for paying unpaid amounts to landlords, but those unpaid 
amounts cannot be the basis for an eviction. Landlords may begin to recover this debt on 
March 1, 2021, and small claims court jurisdiction is temporarily expanded to allow 
landlords to recover these amounts. Landlords who do not follow the court evictions 
process will face increased penalties under the Act. 
 
The legislation also extends anti-foreclosure protections in the Homeowner Bill of Rights 
to small landlords; provides new accountability and transparency provisions to protect 
small landlord borrowers who request CARES-compliant forbearance; and provides the 
borrower who is harmed by a material violation with a cause of action. 
 
Additional legal and financial protections for tenants include: 
•Extending the notice period for nonpayment of rent from 3 to 15 days to provide tenant 
additional time to respond to landlord’s notice to pay rent or quit. 
•Requiring landlords to provide hardship declaration forms in a different language if rental 
agreement was negotiated in a different language. 
•Providing tenants a backstop if they have a good reason for failing to return the hardship 
declaration within 15 days. 
•Requiring landlords to provide tenants a notice detailing their rights under the Act. 
•Limiting public disclosure of eviction cases involving nonpayment of rent between March 
4, 2020 – January 31, 2021. 
•Protecting tenants against being evicted for “just cause” if the landlord is shown to be 
really evicting the tenant for COVID-19-related nonpayment of rent. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
Existing local ordinances can generally remain in place until they expire and future local 
action cannot undermine this Act’s framework. Nothing in the legislation affects a local 
jurisdiction’s ability to adopt an ordinance that requires just cause, provided it does not 
affect rental payments before January 31, 2021.” 
 
The City’s contracted law firm, Jones & Mayer, is in the process of drafting of a 
comprehensive summary of the new law, which will be distributed to the City Council and 
staff upon its completion.      
 
The City’s current COVID-19-related evictions moratorium Ordinance No. 2020-08 is set 
to expire on September 30, 2020.  Given the passage of this comprehensive state law 
regulating COVID-19-related evictions, the City would need to ensure that any future City 
ordinances adopted to regulate the same, would be consistent with and meet the 
requirements set forth in AB 3088.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None. 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
September 9, 2020        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
TITLE:  Letter Addressing PG&E Tree Removal  

 
RECOMMENDATION:   

1. Finalize list of trees to be reviewed by an arborist; and 
 

2. Review the draft letter, approve content and authorize the Mayor to sign; and 
 

3. Direct staff to sign the PG&E encroachment permit request, dated  8/24/20 

CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner  
     
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
At the August 20, 2020 Planning Commission meeting, PG&E presented their plan to remove a 
total of 263 trees within Nevada City around and beneath a power line system along West Broad 
Street and Orchard Street, including 103 on City property within the right-of-way or within Pioneer 
Cemetery and 160 trees on private properties. The tree removal is proposed as part of PG&E’s 
Wildfire Safety Plan and to improve chances of keeping the line energized during high-winds 
triggering Public Safety Power Shut off (PSPS) events. At that meeting, PG&E representative 
JoAnne Drummond indicated that they have a legal obligation to remove all of the trees outlined 
in their spreadsheet.  The Planning Commission communicated concerns about the number of 
trees being removed and scheduled a special meeting for September 1, 2020 to consider 
mitigation measures for the loss of the trees.   However, at that meeting Drummond indicated 
that she has no authority to approve mitigation funds for the loss of trees, though she could pass 
on a request. Therefore, the Planning Commission made four recommendations to City Council 
regarding PG&E’s tree removal plan as follows: 
 

1) Recommend that City Council hire an arborist to review City trees as identified on both a 
staff-identified list and on a list provided at the request of Commissioner Oberholtzer to 
develop a different prescription other than removal as may be recommended by the 
arborist, as soon as possible. 

 
2) Recommendation that private property citizens review PG&E tree removal process as 

presented to the City. 
 

3) Recommendation that Council work with PG&E to develop a comprehensive program, 
such as undergrounding and infrastructure improvement to reduce the need for future 
clear-cutting.  

 
4) Work with the City to develop a mitigation response for the loss of trees that is consistent 

with PG&E’s “Right Tree, Right Place” program.  
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


It should be noted that with regard to recommendation no. 1, several trees are likely to be the 
same on both lists, but it was challenging to field-verify individual trees, so Oberholtzer’s list 
does not include specific trees, rather groupings of trees that were marked in the field.  It may 
take time for staff to determine precisely which trees should be added for arborist review.  With 
regard to recommendation no. 2, staff has created a webpage related to PG&E’s tree 
removal:https://nevadacityca.municipalone.com/pview.aspx?id=20905&catid=564 
 
The attached draft letter to PG&E incorporates recommendation nos. 1, 3 and 4.  After 
consideration, staff recommends making modifications as necessary and authorizing the Mayor 
to sign. 
 
Finally, staff is seeking direction from Council to sign the encroachment permit request from 
PG&E to allow use of Public right-of-way to carry out tree their tree removal plan.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 

 
ATTACHMENT:    
 Letter Addressing PG&E Tree Removal  
 Staff-identified tree reconsideration list 
 Oberholtzer tree reconsideration list 
 Public Comment received at the 9/1/2020 Planning Commission Special Meeting  
 PG&E Encroachment Permit Request 

 

https://nevadacityca.municipalone.com/pview.aspx?id=20905&catid=564


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 9, 2020 
 
Joanne Drumond 
Vegetation Program Manager 
Enhanced Vegetation Management, Sierra Region, Nevada District 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) 
 
Dear Ms. Drummond, 
 
Subject: PG&E Tree Removal Plan within the City of Nevada City 
 
The City of Nevada City respectfully requests that you consider the following treatment 
regarding PG&E’s tree removal plan within City limits: 
 

• Please work with Nevada City to develop a comprehensive program, such as 
undergrounding and infrastructure improvements that will reduce the need for future 
clear-cutting.  

• Reconsider trees identified for removal that have been evaluated by a City-hired arborist 
to determine a different prescription other than removal, to be submitted to PG&E as 
soon as the City receives the arborist’s report.  

• Work with the City to develop a mitigation response for the loss of trees that is consistent 
with PG&E’s “Right Tree, Right Place” program.  

 
The City appreciates your cooperation in working with the City to help preserve its forested 
aesthetic while maintaining a safe electrical system for PG&E’s infrastructure. We look forward 
to working with PG&E in a cooperative spirit.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
___________________ 
Erin Minett 
Mayor of Nevada City  
 
 
CC: Brandon Sanders, Sierra Division Public Affairs for PG&E 



Trees to Be Reviewed for Reconsideration 

Staff-identified list



City Tree ID OBJECTID VEG_POINT_ SPECIES DIAMETE HEIGHT PI_COMMENT SITE_ADDRE LAT LON

14 3327300 Work Identified  CITY TREE Maple 9 74
0.8 of span from pole 228 to 9357. 5 feet northeast of lines. Overhanging lines, trim would take more than 1/3 of 
canopy. Poor taper. Arborist ISA # 12836A 128 ORCHARD 39.26778467090 -121.02452877000

40 3329301 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 39 110
0.5 of span from pole 645 to 670. 8 feet East of lines. Overhanging limbs, trim would remove 1/3 of canopy. 
Declining canopy. Arborist ISA # 12836A 656W BROAD S 39.26650997820 -121.02536941700

45 3329395 Work Identified  CITY TREE Cedar 40 72
0.3 of span from pole 645 to 670. 36 feet East of lines. On far side of driveway. Declining canopy, leaning parallel to 
lines. Dead top. 656W BROAD S 39.26649538130 -121.02522869800

48 3329658 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 29 117

Tree .3 of span from poles 645 to 670, 23ft south of lines. Tree likely to break 4ft conductor to sky zone within 
18months. Trim to scope would remove more than 1/3 canopy. Tree has 2 large wounds from x stem removals on 
main stem. Arborist ISA # 12836A 641W BROAD S 39.26631321760 -121.02540697900

84 3332196 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 44 152
Tree .4 of span from unmarked pole to 198, 30ft east of lines. Tree has poor canopy with blight and rust. Appears 
to be in decline. Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26635287490 -121.02420857700

85 3332236 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 0 0
Tree .5 of span from unmarked pole to 198, 67ft east of lines. Tree has poor canopy with blight and rust. Appears 
to be in decline. Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26637787140 -121.02401205400

86 3332237 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 42 140
Tree .5 of span from poles to , 67ft east of lines. Poor canopy health with rust and needle blight. Tree appears to be 
in decline. Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26637787140 -121.02401205400

88 3332685 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 47 140
13 feet East of pole 198. Overhanging lines. Outside of cemetery fence. Trim would take more than 1/3 of canopy, 
overmature tree, on slope leaning towards lines. County tree Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26675967910 -121.02392503100

89 3332700 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 38 130
15 feet East of pole 198. Previously trimmed, poor needle retention, overmature, leaning slightly away. Trim would 
kill tree. Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26671861780 -121.02394047000

90 3332752 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 39 140
70 feet East of pole 198. Slight lean towards line, sparse canopy, overmature, gall rust, possible beetle. County tree. 
Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26671421400 -121.02375108300

128 3335726 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 50 145
0.7 span from Pole 627 to Pole 12. 131 ft north of lines. Overmature. Codom top. Crown leans to line. Reviewed by 
Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26571435070 -121.02393966700

134 3336101 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 45 140
0.5 of span from pole 33167 to pole 645. 35 feet East of lines on edge of roadway. Tree has some branch die back. 
Trim will take more than 1/3 of canopy, overmature. Arborist ISA # 12836A 656W BROAD S 39.26621510240 -121.02490003800

136 3336114 Work Identified  CITY TREE Cedar 24 75
0.3 of span from pole 33167 to pole 645. 28 feet East of lines. Leaning towards lines and struggling to get light. 
Declining canopy. Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A 656W BROAD S 39.26618033630 -121.02484766500

140 3336324 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 41 129
0.4 span from 611 to 627. 58 ft Northeast of line. Uphill, lean and weight to line. Large defect in back side, 
woodpecker forage sign present. Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26531629050 -121.02373796400

141 3336325 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 34 129
0.4 span from 611 to 627. 66 ft Northeast of line. Uphill, trunk leans slightly away but canopy is leaning and 
weighted towards line. Woodpecker forage sign present. Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26533779390 -121.02370662000

143 3336328 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 21 96
0.5 span from 611 to 627. 56 ft Northeast of line. Uphill, sloped, lean and weight towards pole 611. Reviewed by 
Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26534012730 -121.02379034400

144 3336335 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 43 150
115 ft Northeast of pole 611. Slight lean parallel to lines. Small codominant top in decline. Base has defects and 
apparent beginnings of rot. NO ADDRESS LI 39.26538155310 -121.02363567400

145 3336343 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 48 124
112 ft north of Pole 611. Overmature. Weight to line. Upslope of facilities. Multiple wounds and leaning to line. 
Reviewed by Arborist ISA # 12836A NO ADDRESS LI 39.26537329900 -121.02352136900

147 3336524 Work Identified  CITY TREE Ponderosa Pine 49 146
0.2 span from unmarked pole to 611. 90 ft North of line. Massive wound at base, branch dieback, and lumpy 
defects all way up NO ADDRESS LI 39.26525588940 -121.02340812400

190 3339228 Work Identified  CITY TREE Atlas Cedar 52 80

City tree. Walking tour tree #41. Tree is 6ft southwest of pole 137. Tree within 10ft of pole, tree overhangs lines 
and 2 guy wires. Multiple limbs actively straining guy wires. Trim to scope would remove more than 1/3 canopy. 
Due to proximity, continuou 517W BROAD S 39.26411583890 -121.02177663700



Commissioner Oberholtzer list 
 

City Trees Recommended for PGE Cutting Reconsideration  
 (partial list) 

(Some additional to those on City staff reconsideration list) 
 
City trees should be retained unless it is not possible to limb/ trim to 12’/4’ standard, dead and 
dying, under 6” dbh, or if thinning is needed for health of adjacent trees. 
 
In particular, the trees in this chart should be requested for reconsideration of cutting. 
 
This is a partial list because the Planning Commission does not yet have a map that correlates 
with addresses and ID numbers so many trees cannot be readily located accurately.  City staff 
or City arborist should be consulted for further verification of locations. 
 

Address Tree Recommendation 
Orchard Street   
Nivens and Orchard 
power line crossing 

Cluster  These trees are important to the canopy of Orchard St, especially the 
38” and 47” pines which are 15 feet from the pole and could be 
limbed or trimmed to the 12’/4’ standard to avoid it. 

144 ?  2 trees. Ok to take 1 to thin.  Important to skyline due to size.  
Important since many private trees behind these will be eliminated. 
12 

W. Broad St.   
517 Atlas cedar Keep, find way to trim responsibly.  Recommend cutting left bench 

shaped limb about the limb about 5 ft for aesthetics, reminder of its 
original shape, and to keep somewhat balanced look to tree. 

639 Cluster of 
ponderosa 
pines 

Approx. 15 trees in cluster at Sierra View apts. Screens apts.  Only 5 
are in City.  Keep all of these 5 City trees which are closest to street 
and line since the remainder of the grove may be eliminated as they 
are on private property.  Limb up and trim trees retained. 

Pioneer Cemetary 
656 W Broad 

 Diameter locations do not match trees on PGE list readily so could not 
identify specifically on chart. 
 
However, in general most of these trees appear to be appropriate for 
retention with these exceptions: 
-If beetle infested 
-Dead, dying 
-Under 9” dbh 
 
The large 21” pine as you enter from street should be retained.  
Visually prominent.  
 



Commissioner Oberholtzer list 
 

The first large (50”) ponderosa pine as you reach hilltop entering the 
cemetary should be retained. 7 
 
The line of small pines fronting on street slope should be thinned by 
half.  Taking all would give this frontage a denuded look.  Needed to 
retain slope. 6 
 
The large pine and oak trees marked at front of cemetary hilltop  are 
visually prominent and most need to be retained. Only a couple have 
forks that appear to be problematic or are too close to another tree.  
Very distant from line. Could not fall on homes. 8 
 
The city trees located from W Broad to Orchard St in the drainage 
along Catholic Cemetery e/w fence line under the power line should 
be retained unless dead or dying.  They contribute to the natural 
drainage and are distant from the line. 10 

Cluster of trees at 
front of Catholic 
cemetery, nw 
corner. 1 

 These trees appear to be part of the drainage between the Catholic 
Cemetery and Pioneer Cemetery.  Distant and across street from the 
line.  Should be thinned by half, but at least 3 of the larger trees 
retained should be because they contribute to the skyline and the W. 
Broad Street canopy. . Keep the adjacent 19 and 22 inch cedars, 
because of their growth pattern, one will look denude without the 
other. 1 

Cluster of trees   
heading north on 
west side of W 
Broad.  Dense, 
small trees ok to 
thin. Keep 45”pine. 
Vicinity of 656 W 
Broad. 2/3 

 Keep 48” pine which is important to the skyline.  Keep 39” pine in 
berm in front of house .  OK to take 39” pine directly under line 
(Jeffrey?) 

   
Cluster of trees  on 
west heading north 
on W Broad. At 
drive into 700-708 
W Broad. 4 

 Keep at least half. Keep largest trees here. Important to the skyline 
and W Broad St canopy. 4 

700 W Broad  Keep, trimmable 
   
   

 
Compiled by Commissioner Oberholtzer 



































































                FEE: $175.00 

 
 

                                         APPLICATION 
FOR 

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 
City of Nevada City 
317 Broad Street 

Nevada City, CA  95959 
Telephone: (530) 265‐2496   

Fax: (530) 265‐0187 
 

Street Address: ________________________________                Permit expires 6 months from date of issue 

Contact Person: _______________________________     Phone #: _____________________________________ 

Date: ______________________________                     

Permittee/owner:            Contractor: 

_________________________________________     ___________________________________________ 

_________________________________________     ____________________________________________ 

Phone: ______________ Cell: _________________     Phone: _______________ Cell: ___________________ 

Authorized agent, subject property.   Signed by: _______________________________ Date: ________________ 

WORK PROPOSED.  ATTACH SITE PLAN, PHOTOS, OR SKETCH OF WORK TO BE DONE: 

 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 
Approved by: ________________________________________________                Date: __________________ 
                                                                (Authorized Agent, City of Nevada City) 
 

This permit is approved for the above mentioned project.       Please notify the Public Works Superintendent or City 

Engineer, 24 hours prior to beginning of work at (530) 265‐2496. 

Multiple - PSPS Project
Portions of West and East Broad Street, Finley St, Spring St, and Orchard St.
Joanne Drummond, PG&E VPM 530-510-1064

8/24/2020

PG&E

788 Taylorville Rd, Grass Valley, CA 95945 154 Hughes Rd, Grass Valley, CA 95945

530-510-1064

James Thomas, Mountain F. Enterprises

530-919-6491same same

8/24/2020

Please see attached map of removals.  Tree crew contractor is planning to start after Labor Day and will
coordinate with Nevada City Public Works on dates and specific work areas and dates.



#

#

##

#*

#

#

##

#

#

#

%2%2

#
#

%2%2%2
%2%2%2%2
%2%2
%2

%2%2

#%2%2

##

%2%2

%2%2

%2
%2
%2
%2%2

%2

%2
#

#

%2
%2

#

%2%2

#
#

#

#
#

##

#
#

#
#

#

#
#

#

#

##

#

####
#

#

#
#

#

##

#

%2
%2%2

%2 %2
%2 %2

#

#
#
#

#

%2%2
%2

#
%2
%2%2%2%2#

#

#

#

%2
%2%2%2%2%2%2

#

%2
%2%2%2%2%2%2%2

%2

#

#

%2

#
##

# #

%2

%2

%2
%2

##

%2
%2

%2

%2
%2 %2

%2

%2

%2

#

#

####
%2

##
#

#

#
%2

%2

%2

%2

#

#

#

#

#
#

#

%2

#
##

#

%2

#
#

#

#

#
#

#

%2%2
%2
%2

%2

%2

#

##

#

%2

# #

#

#

#

#
##

#

%2

#

%2%2

#

%2

#

%2

#

#
#

#

#

##

#
#

# #

%2

#
#

#

#

#
#

##

#

#

#

#

#
#

#

###

#

#

##

#

#

#
##

#

#
#

#
# #

#

%2

%2
%2

%2

%2
%2%2#

#

##
####

#

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the
GIS User Community

Nevada City
PSPS Tree Work

I
0 200 400100

Feet

Date: 8/5/2020

Tree Work
#* Hold                                          1
# Refusal                                     9
# Work Identified                      160
%2 Work Identified  City Tree      103

PGE Primary Conductor



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2020         www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Presentation by Nevada County Transportation Commission’s Consultant 
Fehr and Peers Regarding Senate Bill 743 Vehicle Miles Traveled Study 
Recommendations 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 
CONTACT:   Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: 
In 2013, Governor Brown signed Senate Bill (“SB”) 743, which created a process to 
change the way that transportation impacts should be analyzed under California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  However, the state agency with the authority to adopt 
guidelines for implementing CEQA, the Office of Planning and Research (OPR), only 
recently adopted the CEQA Guideline Section 15064.3 to provide guidance in assessing 
transportation impacts under the new framework, which was effective July 1, 2020. 
Specifically, Level of Service (LOS) metrics will no longer be considered a significant 
impact under CEQA and the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (“OPR”) 
recommends that jurisdictions instead use the Vehicle Miles Traveled (“VMT”) metric. 
OPR released a “Technical Advisory” containing methodologies and thresholds for VMT.  
 
As part of the regional transportation planning process, NCTC, in coordination with the 
County of Nevada, City of Grass Valley, City of Nevada City, and Town of Truckee, 
contracted with the firm Fehr & Peers to develop a planning study to provide 
recommendations for methodology, thresholds, and procedures for analysis of land use 
and transportation projects and plans in each of the jurisdictions within Nevada County in 
relation to implementation and compliance with SB 743. Representatives from Fehr and 
Peers have offered to provide a presentation to the City Council regarding the Senate Bill 
743 Vehicle Miles Traveled methodologies and Thresholds study recommendations.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT: Section 15064.3 of the newly adopted CEQA Guidelines 
provides guidance in assessing transportation impacts with VMT.  As of July 1, 2020 all 
land use projects evaluated under CEQA are required to include traffic analysis by way 
of the VMT metric. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 New Transportation Analysis Requirements for CEQA Fehr and Peers 

Presentation  
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


New Transportation 
Analysis Requirements 

for CEQA

September 9, 2020

Rod Brown
Ron Milam



Icons created by Pham Thi Dieu Linh, David Gomez, and corpus delicti from the Noun Project.

After July 1, 2020, VMT must be used for CEQA
2



Mobility

Accessibility

What SB 743 Does…
• Eliminates LOS/delay from 

CEQA analysis

• Adds VMT to CEQA analysis
• Increases state guidance on 

methods and thresholds
• Changes mitigation focus

3



What SB 743 Does 
Not Change…
• General plans 

• Traffic impact fee programs 

• State Constitution

• Subdivision map act, etc.

LOS can continue to be used, 
but not for CEQA analysis of 
land use projects and plans

4



Level of Service
LOS Description

A Relatively free-flow

B Stable flow

C Stable flow operation

D Approaching unstable flow operation

E Unstable flow or operation

F Forced flow or operation

5



Icon created by Hans Paul Mosl Junior, throwaway icons, hans draiman, Mehmur Alp, and Tim Martin from the Noun Project.

10 miles3 miles

29 miles

6



Project Generated VMT vs Project Effect on VMT

7



• Met with technical advisory committee throughout 
process

• Reviewed Western Nevada County travel 
forecasting model

• Created recommendations for methods and 
thresholds to assess VMT

• Developed screening tool for assessment of VMT 
for simple projects

• Identified mitigation measures for reducing VMT
• Recommended changes to transportation analysis 

guidelines for GV and County
• Prepared report
8



VMT Metric.
• An efficiency metric is a VMT generation rate

• Similar to trip generation rate
• Amount of X generated per Y

• Total weekday VMT per service population 
(residents, workers, and students)

• For VMT impact screening, also
• Home-based VMT per resident
• Home-based work VMT per employee

9



Thresholds.
• X percent less than the subarea mean under 

baseline conditions
• “X” based on balancing state and community 

objectives

• Recognizes VMT generation and community values 
vary by area of County; Grass Valley is its own 
subarea

• State perspective is that VMT is more like air 
pollution than LOS, effect is less dependent on local 
perception and context

10



11



Threshold Choice.
Range of options for amount of reduction

• Equal to baseline (0% below)
• Does not change current rate of VMT generation
• Would still need to consider other substantial 

evidence in final impact determination, including 
ARB SB 150 report showing that statewide VMT 
trend is up

• COVID-19 impact is TBD
• 16.8% (light duty vehicles)/14.3% (all vehicles) below 

baseline
• Supported by current ARB data
• Number could change in future based on updated 

ARB analysis
• Will result in most impacts
• Supported by substantial evidence, with limitations

12



Screening.
• Screening criteria

• Local-serving projects, such as retail projects 
less than 50,000 square feet
• Also medical offices, schools, similar uses

• Projects in areas where VMT per service 
population is already low, and similar land use 
exists today

• Projects which will generate little VMT (less 
than 630 per day)

13



Screening Tool.

14



15



Transportation Projects

• For roadway capacity projects, lead agencies have 
discretion to select the metric (VMT or other)

• CEQA Guidelines recommend use of VMT for 
transportation projects

• If VMT used, allows for a variety of projects to be 
presumed to have a less than significant impact

• Transit, bicycle, and pedestrian projects
• Smaller roadway network modifications such as 

intersection restriping

• However, need to ensure methodology accounts 
for induced travel

16



Next Steps.
• After July 1, 2020, CEQA transportation analysis 

for land use projects and land use plans must be 
based on VMT

• Planning and legal counsel will work to adopt 
methodologies and thresholds

17



New Transportation 
Analysis Requirements 

for CEQA

September 9, 2020

Rod Brown
Ron Milam



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding Section 
17.80.240 to the Nevada City Municipal Code Regulating Stationary Standby Generators 
and Ordinance 2020-XX an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Amending Section 
8.20.90 of the Nevada City Municipal Code in Order to Update the City’s Ordinance 
Pertaining to Emergency Use of Generators 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2020-XX, Approving a Notice of Exemption Related to Adoption of 
Ordinance 2020-XX and Ordinance 2020-XX Updating the City’s Municipal Code 
Pertaining to Emergency Generator Use. 

 
2. Waive Reading of Ordinance, Read Title Only and Introduce for First Reading: 

Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Amending Section 8.20.90 
of the Nevada City Municipal Code to Add an Exception to the City’s Noise Regulations 
for the Use of Emergency Generators. 

 
3. Waive Reading of Ordinance, Read Title Only and Introduce for First Reading: 

Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding Section 17.80.240 
to the Nevada City Municipal Code Regulating Stationary Standby Generators. 

 
CONTACT:   Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
Staff has received several requests for processing commercial and residential generators to be 
used in the event of emergency electrical power outages, with particular concern about PG&E 
Public Safety Power Shut-Off events. At their July 23, 2020 meeting, City Council directed staff 
to prepare and present an Ordinance option to regulate commercial and residential generators in 
a manner that provides objective standards for administrative processing.  
 
DRAFT STATIONARY STANDBY GENERATOR ORDINANCE:  
The draft Ordinance provides objective standards in terms of aesthetics, noise attenuation, and 
other land use parameters so that there is an administrative process available to businesses and 
residential applicants seeking to install a stationary standby generator to provide power during 
emergency electrical power outages. As drafted, any generator with a power output in excess of 
18,000 watts would require a Conditional Use Permit. Anything below that power output could be 
processed through a Minor Architectural Review application (10,000 watts or below) or an 
Architectural Review application (between 10,000 and 18,000 watts) subject to the standards 
outlined in the Ordinance with a supplemental application material checklist as outlined. These 
generators would only be permitted to run “during interruptions of electrical service from the 
distribution system or transmission grid due to circumstances beyond the operator’s control.”  The 
Ordinance also requires that an applicant demonstrate screening if placed within a street-side 
setback and requires that it be placed in a manner visible from public views if proposed within the 
Historic District.  
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


DRAFT NOISE ORDINANCE AMENDMENT:  
Staff has also drafted an Ordinance amendment to chapter 8.20, Noise Standards, to add a 
specific exception to noise standards applicable to generator use, whether portable or stationary, 
for use during emergency electrical power outages.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
At their August 20, 2020 meeting, after discussion and consideration of public testimony, the 
planning commission approved the ordinance as drafted.  Since presenting to the planning 
commission, staff determined that it might be prudent to include a third application option, falling 
between an administrative Minor Architectural Review and a discretionary Conditional Use Permit  
by way of  an Architectural Review process that may still be reviewed by the Planning Commission 
for design review and aesthetic considerations .  Staff has therefore amended the draft Ordinance 
with an intermediate option for an Architectural Review application for those generators with 
power outputs falling between 10,000 and 18,000 watts. Most of the residential generators that 
staff has reviewed to date fall within this level of output. Staff has reached out to the planning 
commission and invited them to provide comment directly to you if they have any concern about 
this amendment.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT:  
The Planning Commission recommended that the project be found exempt from environmental 
review pursuant to §15301 (Class 1) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
guidelines. The CEQA Guidelines for Categorical Exemption §15301, allows for operation, 
repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or 
private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving 
negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s 
determination. Consistent with this exemption, the Ordinance will regulate stationary standby 
generators to provide power to existing permitted uses and only during electrical emergency 
power outage events and will not provide for an expansion of use.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Resolution 2020-XX, Approving A Notice Of Exemption Related to Adoption of 

Ordinance 2020-XX and Ordinance 2020-XX Updating the City’s Municipal Code 
Pertaining To Emergency Generator Use 
 

 ORDINANCE 2020-XX, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AMENDING 
SECTION 8.20.90 OF THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD AN 
EXCEPTION TO THE CITY’S NOISE REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF 
EMERGENCY GENERATORS 
 

 ORDINANCE 2020-XX, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY ADDING 
SECTION 17.80.240 TO THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING 
STATIONARY STANDBY GENERATORS 



 
             RESOLUTION 2020-XX                     

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA,  

APPROVING A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION  

(ORDINANCE 2020-XX, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY ADDING SECTION 
17.80.240 TO THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING STATIONARY STANDBY 
GENERATORS AND ORDINANCE 2020-XX OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AN ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AMENDING SECTION 8.20.90 OF THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO ADD AN EXCEPTION TO THE CITY’S NOISE REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF 
EMERGENCY GENERATORS) 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Nevada City has reviewed the Ordinance Adding SECTION 
17.80.240 Of Title 17 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Entitled “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
NEVADA CITY ADDING SECTION 17.80.240 TO THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING 
STATIONARY STANDBY GENERATORS” and the City Council of the City of Nevada City has reviewed the 
Ordinance AMENDING SECTION 8.20.90 Of Title 8 Of The Nevada City Municipal Code Entitled “AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AMENDING SECTION 8.20.90 OF THE NEVADA CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD AN EXCEPTION TO THE CITY’S NOISE REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF 
EMERGENCY GENERATORS” (“Project”) and determined that it is exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Title 14, Chapter 3, California Code of Regulations: 

The subject Ordinance is categorically exempt from review under CEQA Guidelines §15301 (Class 
1) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines. The CEQA Guidelines for 
Categorical Exemption §15301, allows for operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, 
licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical 
equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that 
existing at the time of the lead agency’s determination; and. 

WHEREAS the Ordinance will regulate stationary standby generators to provide power to existing permitted 
uses only during electrical emergency power outage events and will not provide for an expansion of use;  

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City as follows: 

Section 1. Based on the review and determination of the Planning Department, the Planning Commission of 
the City of Nevada City finds that the Project is exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality 
Act. 

Section 2. The Notice of Exemption attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is recommended for approval for the Project. 

Section 3. Upon approval of the Project by the City Council, the City Clerk may file the Notice of Exemption 
with the County Clerk of Nevada County and, if the Project requires a discretionary approval from any state 
agency, with the State Office of Planning and Research, pursuant to the provisions of Section 21152(b) of the 
Public Resources Code and the State EIR Guidelines adopted pursuant thereto. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City at a public meeting held 
on the ______ of ___________________, 2020. 

 

_______________________________________ 
                         Erin Minett, Mayor 

ATTEST:   

By:  __________________________________     
      NIEL LOCKE, CITY CLERK 



Resolution 2020-XX, Exhibit 1 
 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
TO:  Office of Planning and Research  FROM:  City of Nevada City 
  1400 Tenth Street       317 Broad Street 
  Sacramento, CA 95814      Nevada City, CA 95959 
 

 Nevada County Clerk/Recorder’s Office 
Environmental Filings 
Eric W. Rood Administrative Center 
950 Maidu Avenue, Nevada City CA 95959 
 

Project Title:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY ADDING SECTION 17.80.240 TO THE 
NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING STATIONARY STANDBY GENERATORS and 
ORDINANCE 2020-XX OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AMENDING SECTION 8.20.90 OF THE NEVADA 
CITY MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD AN EXCEPTION TO THE CITY’S NOISE REGULATIONS FOR THE USE 
OF EMERGENCY GENERATORS 
Project Address:  317 Broad Street, Nevada City, California 95959 
Project Location – City: City of Nevada City 
Project Location – County: Nevada 
Project Description:  The ordinance amends the Nevada City Municipal Code to add Chapter 17.80.240 
to allow the City to regulate stationary standby generators providing power to existing permitted uses 
during emergency electrical power outage events and amends 8.20.90 to include emergency generator 
use in a list of activities that warrant exceptions from the noise standards. 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Nevada City 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:  City of Nevada City 
Exempt Status:  (Check One) 
  Ministerial (Section 21080(b)(1); 15268); 
  Declared Emergency (Section 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 
  Emergency Project (Section 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 
       “Common Sense” Exception (Section 15061(b)(3)) 
__ X  Categorical Exemption.  Type and section numbers: 15301 
       Statutory Exemptions. State code number:  
Reasons why project is exempt: The subject Ordinance is categorically exempt from review under 
CEQA Guidelines §15301 (Class 1) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines. The 
CEQA Guidelines for Categorical Exemption §15301, allows for operation, repair, maintenance, 
permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that 
existing at the time of the lead agency’s determination 
 
Lead Agency Contact Person: Amy Wolfson, City Planner      Number: 530-265-2496x130 
 
Signature & Title:          Date:      
 

�  Signed by Lead Agency    � Signed by Applicant Date received for filing:    



 
1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY ADDING 
SECTION 17.80.240 TO THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGULATING STATIONARY STANDBY GENERATORS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City, California ("City") is a municipal corporation, 
duly organized under the constitution and laws of the State of California; and 

 
WHEREAS, the utility PG&E has implemented a Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) 

program whereby all customers in any given area could have their power shut off for multiple 
days; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City has received recent inquiries from residents and 

business owners about the use of generators for homes and commercial businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the noise ordinance of the City of Nevada City Municipal Code provides 

for measures to protect the peace and quiet of neighborhoods and community solitude and 
does not anticipate the possibility of PG&E power shutoffs and resulting interest in backup 
generators for homes and businesses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the zoning ordinance of the City of Nevada City Municipal Code provides 

for measures to protect the aesthetics of neighborhoods and the community and does 
adequately address aesthetics of backup generators for homes and businesses; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 23, 2020, City Council requested that an item be placed on the 

City Council agenda to consider possible adoption of an ordinance providing for an 
administrative process to allow backup generators during emergency electrical power 
interruptions; and  

 
WHEREAS, such generators can be an important safety element during a power 

outage by maintaining power for refrigeration systems and medical equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 20, 2020, the Planning Commission held a duly-noticed public 

hearing and considered the staff report, recommendations by staff, and public testimony 
concerning the proposed ordinance, and voted 4-0 (with one Planning Commission seat 
vacant) to recommend approval of the Ordinance to the City Council.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY DOES 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Section 17.80.240 is hereby added to the Nevada City Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 



 
 

17.80.240 – Stationary Standby Generators—Purpose and definitions.  
A. Purpose. The City of Nevada City finds and declares that stationary standby 

generators can be an important safety feature during an electrical power outage by 
maintaining power for refrigeration systems and medical equipment. If unregulated, 
standby generators can be noise and aesthetic nuisances and can also compromise 
the safety and welfare of the community.    

 
It is the intent of Nevada City to encourage use of stationary standby generators 
during temporary interruptions in electrical power and, additionally, to impose 
standards that will enhance the safety of the community without compromising 
aesthetics or the quite enjoyment of neighborhoods  
 

B. Findings. 
 (1) It is necessary to regulate the aesthetic impacts of stationary standby 

generators, because if stationary standby generators are located in areas without 
locational regulations or screening requirements they may be unsightly and 
therefore, detract from the aesthetic and design requirements of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code requirements thereby leading to a decline in property values within 
the City. 

 (2)  Regulating air quality impacts of stationary standby generators is necessary 
to protect the health and safety of residents and visitors, because without air quality 
limits exhaust from individual or collective stationary standby generators may cause 
respiratory and health problems. 

 (3) Regulating noise levels and hours of operations of stationary standby 
generators is necessary to protect the health and safety of residents and visitors 
because exposure to excessive noise levels, especially for prolonged periods, 
causes hearing damage or loss and other health conditions.   

    
C. Definitions.  
(1) “Stationary standby generator” means a non-portable, hardwired generator intended 

for permanent installation.   
 
 
17.80.241 – Stationary Standby Generators—General.  
 
(A) A stationary standby generator may operate only during interruptions of electrical 

service from the distribution system or transmission grid due to circumstances 
beyond the operator’s control.  

(B) Prior to installation of a stationary standby generator, the property owner shall obtain 
one of the following permits: 
(1) A Minor Architectural Review approval for all stationary standby generators 

10,000 watts are less, from the City Planning Department;  
(2) .An Architectural Review application for all stationary standby generators 

between  10,000 watts and 18,000 watts; and 



 
 

(3) A Conditional Use Permit for all stationary standby generators over 18,000 
watts; 

 
 Applications for Architectural Review and Minor Architectural Review must meet the 

criteria set forth in Section 17.80.242.  
 
17.80.242 – Stationary Standby Generators—Application for Stationary Standby Generator 
permit.  
 
A.   An Architectural Review approval may be issued only for proposals that meet and 

continue to conform with all requirements below and as specified in the City of 
Nevada City Municipal Code.  
(1) Stationary standby generators that have a power output of 18,000 watts 

or less may be located in all zones within the City except for Open Space 
(OS). Any Generator with a power output in excess of 18,000 watts shall 
be reviewed through a Conditional Use Permit. 

(2) Air Quality: An Authority to Construct/Permit to Operate issued by the 
Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District (NSAQMD) is required for 
any diesel-fired generator engine greater than 50 horsepower before such 
generator is placed into operation. Such permits shall be good for one year 
and renewed on an annual basis.  

(3) Noise Standards:  
a. Applicant shall demonstrate that the generator complies with noise standards 

outlined in Chapter 8.20 of the City Municipal Code. 
b.   Test cycles shall only run during day time hours of 7AM to 9PM. 

(4) Aesthetics:  
a. All stationary standby generators shall be located outside of the front yard 

setback or outside a corner street-side yard if possible, otherwise they must 
be adequately screening by fencing, landscaping or other method as 
demonstrated on the site plan.  

b. All stationary standby generators proposed within the Historic District shall be 
located in such a manner so as not to be visible from public views. 

(5) Location: Stationary standby generators shall not be allowed within a 
property easement unless the easement expressly permits the generator. 

(6) Safety: Stationary standby generators shall be equipped with a disconnect 
pursuant to Section 15.08.045, Auxiliary Power Generator, of the City 
Municipal Code. 

(7) Following the City’s Architectural Review approval, the applicant shall obtain 
an electrical/plumbing permit from the Nevada County Building Department, 
acting on behalf of the City. 

 
B.   An architectural review application shall be submitted by the owner of the parcel 

and shall be filed with the city planner on the city-approved application form and 
subject to the established fee and the following additional checklist: 

 



 
 

(1) A digital copy of the site plan or three (3) copies if hard copies are submitted;  
(2) The brand, model, KW-output stationary standby generator to be installed; 
(3) The brand, model, and specifications of the transfer switch to be utilized; 
(4) Location of stationary standby generator, transfer switch, raceways, and fuel 

gas piping to/from unit, mounting surface of stationary standby generator; 
(5) Size dimensions of the stationary standby generator; 
(6) Type of fuel supply for the stationary standby generator; and 
(8) Signed “Stationary Standby Generator Declaration.” 

 
SECTION 2.  CEQA. This Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines section 15301 because CEQA only applies to 
projects which have the potential to have a significant impact on the environment and 
because the installation of an emergency standby generator will serve an existing  permitted 
commercial or residential use of the property and will not involve an expansion of that use, 
but rather allows for continuance of the permitted use during temporary interruptions of 
electrical power. 

 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective on the 31st day 

after adoption.   
 
SECTION 4.  Severability.  If any portion of this ordinance is found to be 

unenforceable, each such provision shall be severed, and all remaining portions of this 
ordinance shall be enforced to the maximum extent legally permissible. 

 
SECTION 5.  Certification.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption 

of this ordinance as required by law.   
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___th day of ______2020 by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:   

 
____________________________ 
Erin Minett, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
_______________________________ 
Crystal Hodgson, City Attorney 



 
1 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AMENDING 
SECTION 8.20.90 OF THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 

TO ADD AN EXCEPTION TO THE CITY’S NOISE 
REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF EMERGENCY 

GENERATORS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City, California ("City") is a municipal corporation, 
duly organized under the constitution and laws of the State of California; and 

 
WHEREAS, the utility PG&E has implemented a Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) 

program whereby all customers in any given area could have their power shut off for multiple 
days; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City has received recent inquiries from residents and 

business owners about the use of generators for homes and commercial businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the noise ordinance of the City of Nevada City Municipal Code provides 

for measures to protect the peace and quiet of neighborhoods and community solitude and 
does not anticipate the possibility of PG&E power shutoffs and resulting interest in backup 
generators for homes and businesses; and 

 
WHEREAS, such generators can be an important safety element during a power 

outage by maintaining power for refrigeration systems and medical equipment. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY DOES 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Section 8.20.90 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
8.20.90 – General Exemptions  
The following noises are exempted from regulation by this chapter:  

A. Sirens, horns and other warning signals on ambulance, fire and public safety 
vehicles and the like, while being utilized in response to an emergency condition 
endangering health, safety or property; 

B. Work required in response to an emergency condition endangering the public 
welfare; and 

C. A stationary or portable generator operating only during interruptions of electrical 
service from the distribution system or transmission grid due to circumstances 
beyond the operator’s control. 

 



 
 

SECTION 2.  CEQA. This Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines section 15301 because CEQA only applies to 
projects which have the potential to have a significant impact on the environment and 
because the installation of an emergency generator will serve an existing  permitted 
commercial or residential use of the property and will not involve an expansion of that use, 
but rather allows for continuance of the permitted use during temporary interruptions of 
electrical power. 

 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective on the 31st day 

after adoption.   
 
SECTION 4.  Severability.  If any portion of this ordinance is found to be 

unenforceable, each such provision shall be severed, and all remaining portions of this 
ordinance shall be enforced to the maximum extent legally permissible. 

 
SECTION 5.  Certification.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption 

of this ordinance as required by law.   
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___th day of ______2020 by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:   

 
__________________________ 
Erin Minett, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
_______________________________ 
Crystal Hodgson, City Attorney 


	1 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - 09.09.20
	WEDNESDAY,  SEPTEMBER 9, 2020
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	3A-1 SR 9.9.20 Accounts Payable Activity Report - June, July, August 2020
	3A-2 Accounts Payable Activity - June 2020
	3A-3 Accounts Payable Activity - July 2020
	3A-4 Accounts Payable Activity - August 2020
	3B-1 SR 9.9.20 Special Meeting Action Minutes August 21, 2020
	3B-2 Special Meeting Minutes - August 21, 2020
	3C-1 SR 9.9.20 Action Minutes August 26, 2020
	3C-2 Meeting Minutes -August 26, 2020
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	4A-1 SR 9.9.20 Evictions Update
	6A-1 SR 9.9.20 PG&E Tree Removal
	6A-2 PG&E1- Att1 Draft Tree Removal Letter
	6A-3 PG&E2- ATT2-staff-identified Trees for reconsideration
	ATT4.1 PSPS_Nevada_City_08052020_Veg_Points_LAT_LON_XLS-Forr Acton - Copy.pdf
	PSPS_Nevada_City_08052020_Veg_P


	6A-4 PG&E3- ATT3-Oberholzer- List of City Trees
	6A-5 PG&E4-Comments from 9-1-20
	6A-6 PG&E Encroachment Permit Request
	PG&E Encroachment Map
	PG&E Encroachment Permit Form

	7A-1 SR 9.9.20- SB 743 Presentation and Update to Council
	7A-2 SB7431 -Att NCTC_SB743_NC_Council
	7B-1 SR 9.9.20 Ord Generator and  Noise Amendment
	7B-2 Generator1 ATT1- PC Reso NOE - ADU Ord
	NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

	7B-3 Generator2 ATT2  Ordinance (cvh alw)-Arch Review Update
	ORDINANCE NO. 2020-XX
	AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:
	Erin Minett, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	Niel Locke, City Clerk
	APPROVED AS TO FORM

	7B-4 Generator3 ATT3- Noise Emergency Generators Ordinance Amedment.docx (cvh edits)1
	ORDINANCE NO. 2020-XX
	AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:
	Erin Minett, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	Niel Locke, City Clerk
	APPROVED AS TO FORM




